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5 | BROADCOM INC AVGO 8.00% 2022 L

09/30/2022 30 '

ALLY FINANCIAL ALLY
10 4 70% pErRP 1.2

2022
2022
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2019 10 31 147,770,941.31 17,074,932 107.37 12,407
2020 10 31 270,736,473.62 31,283,600 107.37 12,407
2021 10 31 465,898,446.53 53,834,565 115.13 13,303
2021 412,352,793.28 47,647,365 111.30 12,861
422,218,131.53 48,787,305 112.82 13,036

426,857,460.26 49,323,380 113.23 13,084

431,799,516.32 49,894,434 114.36 13,214

442 ,553,548_46 51,137,063 115.21 13,313

450,030,488.21 52,001,023 115.58 13,355

464,326,037.93 53,652,874 114 .41 13,220

10 465,898,446.53 53,834,565 115.13 13,303

11 456,020,478.15 52,693,166 113.44 13,108

12 470,450,897.42 54,360,601 115.96 13,399

2022 460,778,223.29 53,242,924 112.29 12,975
453,019,900.17 52,346,449 110.13 12,726

59/235



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 10 31 97,818,154.86 11,302,888 104.18 12,038
2020 10 31 177,235,749.33 20,479,591 101.12 11,684
2021 10 31 267,753,142.13 30,938,876 105.37 12,176
2021 249,325,119.35 28,809,518 103.57 11,968
252,267,677.48 29,149,530 104.74 12,103

254,493,065.57 29,406,674 104.86 12,117

255,492,496.89 29,522,158 105.66 12,209

256,399,642.26 29,626,979 106.20 12,271

258,731,197.54 29,896,390 106.28 12,281

263,672,570.42 30,467,366 104.96 12,128

10 267,753,142.13 30,938,876 105.37 12,176

11 264,874,992.25 30,606,305 103.57 11,968

12 271,711,394.55 31,396,252 105.62 12,204

2022 263,666,754.90 30,466,694 102.04 11,791
258,771,809.83 29,901,083 99.83 11,535
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2018 28 2022
2018 28 2019 10 3.00 347
2019 11 2020 10 3.00 347
2020 11 2021 10 3.00 347
2021 11 0.25 29
2021 12 0.25 29
2022 0.25 29
2022 0.25 29
2021 2022 3.00 347
2018 28 2022 10.00 1,156
2018 28 2021 10
2018 28 2019 10 /.31 /.18
2019 11 2020 10 0.00 -0-06
2020 11 2021 10 7.23 .17

100x -
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2018
2018 28 2018 12 -5.74 =573
2019
2019 2019 12 15.40 15.22
2020
2020 2020 12 3.13 2.97
2021
2021 2021 12 3.36 3.29
2022
2022 2022 -5.03 -5.01
100x +
2022
2018
ELEMEE S K UMIBEE DES
HER R
e 3 ] EER (Z018E9R 288y ~202282R 288 (B A#FL)
120+ s G = 800
MISF = 1Dy R BT (W) 700
110 : BO0
105 S00
100 400
35 200
a0 200
85} 4100
80 : g . . : : 0
18/9/28 19,331 199730 200303 200930 21343 2159430

L ﬁFﬁEEﬂéls., HEETIFEAG] HESOTLEREVLS, FESEENERFEHRSESEA0 | QN UREE GRS
HUET,

EEEET

(HEIL) LEE (201 8508 2808 ~ 2022528 288 (EPHEIL)
[ [— =
WS DMy KRB () . : Ny 1700
110 [ SR B NEE () ; \ e : A 500
105 . f—= 500
100 400
95 300
20 200
a5 100
5{) L i i i G

18/9/28 19/3/31 1949/30 2003437 2009/30 21/3/3 219730
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INREEDIERE
20098
1540
158
10%
5% 3 13 335
C‘% i i i i
—5% = %
-574 —B03
=A% 20184 20194 20204 20215 20224
{20!&19%288*”) "EC:IIQ‘EHJ"%‘IEIM-) [2020&1@15*) '2021E1ﬁIEI~) tzﬂ-ﬂE'Iﬁ’IElﬂ)
2018F12HFEH ll.i‘GI‘SIﬂZFEFHEEI 2020:E12HFEHE l:.2ﬂ21¢12ﬁﬂ:'5 202252 3%
205
15% e
1 Cros
5% 2.97 3.29
0% E— . — — -+ —_—
..-‘5% -
-5.73 =501 [
i 201 B 2019 20205 W2 1E 202245
(2016&9.‘5}265“—‘ ‘ECII'BE‘IEIEW} (2020"&1515“} (EUEIEHE,IIEP-} (EEHEEI:E]‘JEI“—"
2018512850 | 2019212858 202012850 2021412 8%0 2022¢28%0 |
(PR (%) =100 [a=b)+b
a=BEFE (02T ZEEB D 1 OS5 L) o i S + 20O s e s &5
b= M E R HEARD BARE (D 1 127 D e R i 4
2018 DS, BT M1 O LSBT S
2018 28 2021 10 2021 10
1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2018 28 1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2019 10 990,748 40,043 950,705
990,748 40,043 950,705
1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
2019 11 1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
2020 10
997,582 189,623 1,758,664
997,582 189,623 1,758,664
2,624,512 1,097,322 4,058,601
2020 11 (2,624,512) (1,097,322) (4,058,601)
2021 10 1,347,788 542,233 2,564,219
(1,347,788) (542,233) (2,564,219)
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2010 2018
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115.55
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2021 10 31

2021 2020
1 15,161,294 1,751,888 10,750,586 1,242,230
(202820§126)g;§’iié’941 8,9,10 714,378,751 82,546,465 433,803,630 50,126,009
11,417,580 1,319,301 13,246,701 1,530,656
- - 54,806 6,333
740,957,625 85,617,654 457,855,723 52,905,229
- - 6,100,000 704,855
2,641,424 305,217 1,547,095 178,767
13 850,397 98,263 575,175 66,461
3,491,821 403,480 8,222,270 950,083
737,465,804 85,214,174 449,633,453 51,055,145
467,272,293 53,993,313 271,794,927 31,405,904
12 4,058,601 - 2,531,411 -
115.13 13 107.37 12
270,193,511 31,220,860 177,838,526 20,549,242
12 2,564,219 - 1,758,664 -
105.37 12 101.12 12

2022
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2021 10 31
2021 2020

14 28,737,628 3,320,633 (4,411,215) (509,716)
17,237,496 1,991,793 9,770,117 1,128,937
45,975,124 5,312,426 5,358,902 619,221
- - (68) (6))
45,975,124 5,312,426 5,358,834 619,213
13,15 4,539,997 524,597 2,438,673 281,789
13,15 1,297,200 149,891 696,772 80,512
13,15 778,320 89,935 418,063 48,307
13,15 439,003 50,727 243,864 28,178
13,15 30,351 3,507 27,733 3,205
25,182 2,910 25,159 2,907
197,746 22,850 173,019 19,992
7,307,799 844,416 4,023,283 464,890
38,667,325 4,468,009 1,335,551 154,323
16 (6,916,185) (799,165) (4,147,884) (479,288)
(6,916,185) (799,165) (4,147,884) (479,288)
31,751,140 3,668,844 (2.812,333) (324,965)
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2021 10 31
2021 2020
449,633,453 51,955,145 248,993,541 28,771,204
437,352,209 50,536,048 253,137,467 29,250,034
(181,270,998)  (20,945,864) (49,685,222) (5,741,127)
31,751,140 3,668,844 (2,812,333) (324,965)
737,465,804 85,214,174 449,633,453 51,955,145
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2021 10 31

2021

31,751,140

(257,937,493)

(28,737,628)

54,806
275,222

3,668,844

(29,804,677)

2020

(2,812,333)

(207,270,114)

(324,965)

(23,950, 062)

- 2,800,000 323,540
(3,320,633) 4,533,780 523,878
- (122,565) (14,162)

6,333 55,113 6,368
31,802 239,812 27,710

(254,593, 953)

(29,418,331)

(202,576,307)

(23,407,692)

439,181,330 50,747,403 254,528,812 29,410,804
(180,176,669)  (20,819,414) (48,256,619) (5,576,052)
259,004,661 29,927,989 206,272,193 23,834,752

4,410,708 509,657 3,695,886 427,060
10,750,586 1,242,230 7,054,700 815,171
15,161,294 1,751,888 10,750,586 1,242,230
17,237,496 1,991,793 9,770,117 1,128,937
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2021 10 31

11 2013 12
2018

2018

2021 10 31
28.35 (2020 :25.61

16
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2021 10 31

10 12 27
2012

IFRS

10

2020 11
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2013 12 50

98/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 10 31

32
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99/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 10 31
2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2021 2021 2020 2020
2,520,145,516 714,378,751  1,686,150,823 433,803,630
2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2021
- 15,161,294 - 15,161,294
714,378,351 - - 714,378,351
- 11,417,580 - 11,417,580
714,378,351 26,578,874 - 740,957,625
- - 2,641,424 2,641,424
- - 850,397 850,397

737,465,804

737,465,804

740,957,625

740,957,625
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2021 10 31

2020

433,803,630

10,750,586

10,750,586
433,803,630

- 13,246,701 - 13,246,701
- 54,806 - 54,806
433,803,630 24,052,093 - 457,855,723
- - 6,100,000 6,100,000
- - 1,547,095 1,547,095
- - 575,175 575,175

449,633,453

449,633,453

457,855,723

457,855,723
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2021 10 31
2021
- 714,378,751 - 714,378,751
- 714,378,751 - 714,378,751
2020
- 433,803,630 - 433,803,630
- 433,803,630 - 433,803,630
2021 10 31 2020 10 31

10
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2021 10 31

10.

2021

- - - 15,161,294 15,161,294

714,378,751 714,378,751
- - - 11,417,580 11,417,580

740,957,625 740,957,625

- - - 2,641,424 2,641,424
- - - 850,397 850,397

3,491,821 3,491,821
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2021

10 31

10.

2020
- - 10,750,586 10,750,586
- - 433,803,630 433,803,630
- - 13,246,701 13,246,701
- - 54,806 54,806
. - 457,855,723 457,855,723
- - 6,100,000 6,100,000
- - 1,547,095 1,547,095
- - 575,175 575,175
- - 8,222,270 8,222,270
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2021 10 31
10.
2021 10 31 2020 10 31

2021
15,161,294 - 15,161,294
11,417,580 - 11,417,580
26,578,874 - 26,578,874
2,641,424 - 2,641,424
850,397 850,397
737,465,804 - 737,465,804
740,957,625 - 740,957,625

2020
10,750,586 - 10,750,586
13,246,701 - 13,246,701
23,997,287 - 23,997,287
6,100,000 - 6,100,000
1,547,095 - 1,547,095
575,175 - 575,175

449,633,453

449,633,453

457,855,723

- 457,855,723
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2021 10 31

12

2021 2020

15,161,294 10,750,586

15,161,294 10,750,586
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2021 10 31

2021 2020
2,531,411 1,396,490
2,624,512 1,421,815

(1,097,322) (286,894)
4,058,601 2,531,411
1,758,664 950,705
1,347,788 997,582

(542,233) (189, 623)
2,564,219 1,758,664
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432,736 257,677
123,705 73,630
74,223 44,178
41,365 25,771
17,111 4,750
25,116 25,109
136,141 144,060
850,397 575,175
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2021 10 31

0.55
2021 2020
28,737,628 (4,533,780)

122,565 122,565

28,737,628 (4,411,215)
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2021 10 31
16.
0.005
2021 10 31 6,916,185 2020 4,147,884
17.
2021 10 31 44,461,277
54,612,144 2022

2,571,074

2022

117/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I1I

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 October 2021

2021 2020

Notes USD USD
Assets
Cash 11 15,161,294 10,750,586
Investment in Selected Fund (Cost 2021:
USD678,111,941, 2020: USD426,274,448) 8,9,10 714,378,751 433,803,630
Subscriptions receivable 11,417,580 13,246,701
Other assets - 54,806
Total Assets 740,957,625 457,855,723
Liabilities
Payable for purchase of investment in Selected Fund - 6,100,000
Repurchases payable 2,641,424 1,547,095
Other payables 13 850,397 575,175
Total Liabilities 3,491,821 8,222,270
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable 737,465,804 449,633,453

participating units

Representing:
Capital Growth Type Units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units

Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 4,058,601 2,531,411
Net asset value (“ NAV” ) per redeemable

USD467,272,293  USD271,794,927

participating unit 115.13 107.37
Monthly Distribution Type Units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

participating units 270,193,511 177,838,526
Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 2,564,219 1,758,664
NAV per redeemable participating unit 105.37 101.12

Approved on behalf of the Trustee on 3 March 2022

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®"s Collection

A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 October 2021

Net income from financials instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) on investments

Dividend income

Net foreign exchange loss

Total revenue

Distribution fees
Investment Manager fees
Fee Agent fees
Administration fees
Custody fees

Audit fees

Other fees and expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance Costs

Distributions to the holder of redeemable
participating units

Total Finance Costs

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units

Notes

14

13,15
13,15
13,15
13,15
13,15

16

2021 2020

usD UsD
28,737,628 (4,411,215)
17,237,496 9,770,117
45,975,124 5,358,902
- (68)
45,975,124 5,358,834
4,539,997 2,438,673
1,297,200 696,772
778,320 418,063
439,003 243,864
30,351 27,733
25,182 25,159
197,746 173,019
7,307,799 4,023,283
38,667,325 1,335,551

(6,916,185)

(4,147,884)

(6,916, 185)

(4,147,884)

31,751,140

(2.812,333)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Participating
Units
For the year ended 31 October 2021

2021 2020
usb UsD
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units at start of year 449,633,453 248,993,541
Issue of redeemable participating units 437,352,209 253,137,467
Repurchase of redeemable participating units (181,270,998) (49,685,222)
Change in net agsgts gttrlbgtable to the holder of 31,751,140 (2,812,333)
redeemable participating units
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable 737,465,804 449,633,453

participating units at end of year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 October 2021

Operating activities

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units

Purchase of investment in Selected Fund
Proceeds from sale of investment in Selected Fund

Adjustment for items not involving cash

Movement in unrealised (gain)/loss on investment in
Selected Fund

Net realised gain on investment in Selected Fund

Net change in non-cash operating balances
Decrease in other assets
Increase in other payables

Net cash used in operating activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating
units

Payments for repurchase of redeemable participating
units

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Supplementary information:
Dividends received

2021
usD

31,751,140
(257,937,493)

(28,737,628)

54,806
275,222
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2020
uSsD

(2,812,333)
(207,270,114)

2,800,000

4,533,780

(122,565)

55,113
239,812

(254,593,953)

(202,576,307)

439,181,330

(180,176,669)

254,528,812

(48,256,619)

259,004,661

206,272,193

4,410,708 3,695,886
10,750,586 7,054,700
15,161,294 10,750,586
17,237,496 9,770,117

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I1I

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Meister’ s Collection (For Qualified Institutional Investors only) (the “ Series Trust” ) has
been created and established pursuant to the Master Trust Deed for Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) 111 (the “ Master Trust” ) dated 2 December 2013 and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 3
August 2018 (the “ Supplement Trust Deed” and, together with the Master Trust Deed, the “ Trust
Deed” ).

The Series Trust commenced trading on 28 September 2018 issuing Capital Growth Type Units and
Monthly Distribution Type Units, respectively.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to provide investors with the option of receiving
either current income or capital appreciation by indirectly investing under normal market
conditions mainly in income-producing debt and equity securities including, but not limited to,
corporate bonds, convertible bonds, common stocks and preferred stocks. It is expected that the
Series Trust will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing substantially all of the
assets of the Series Trust into the USD Distribution Class Units of Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund (the “ Selected Fund” ). The Selected Fund is a series trust of Global Multi Strategy, an
umbrella unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands (the “ Umbrella Trust” ). At
31 October 2021, the Series Trust had a 28.35% (2020: 25.61%) holding in the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold USD cash and money market securities (including but not limited to
commercial paper, certificates of deposit and government bills).

Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company, Limited (the “ Investment Manager” ) shall have day-
to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion of the
Series Trust’ s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market securities
(the “ Subadvised Portfolio” ).

The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. It is intended that
the portion of such income that is attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units will be
distributed to holders of such class of Units on each distribution date, as further described in
Note 16.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek to provide a high level of income and
attractive risk-adjusted returns by investing in corporate securities across the capital
structure based on the investment manager of the Selected Fund, NWQ Investment Management
Company, LLC' s (the “ SF Investment Manager” ) assessment of relative value and risk. The base
currency of the Selected Fund is USD.

In order to pursue its investment objective, the SF Investment Manager employs a rigorous
research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued companies with positive
risk/reward characteristics in selecting investments for the Selected Fund.

The SF Investment Manager’ s approach to investing is based upon a bottom-up, fundamental
approach. The team conducts independent research focused on understanding individual companies as
businesses rather than viewing them simply as stocks. Part of the methodology includes rigorous
financial statement evaluation, focusing on balance sheet and cash flow statement analysis above
solely relying upon the income statement, a process they believe allows for a true understating
of a company’ s economic profitability, cash flow and return on capital.

The SF Investment Manager’ s investment process focuses on the attractiveness of a particular
security within a company’ s capital structure and seeks to invest in securities that it feels
possess the appropriate balance between risk and reward and that represent good value when
compared to other similar securities. The SF Investment Manager may choose to sell securities or
reduce its exposure to a security, including through the use of the financial derivative
instruments described below, if it feels that a company no longer possesses favorable risk/reward
characteristics, attractive valuations or catalysts, if it identifies better alternatives within
a company’ s capital structure, or if a company suspends or is projected to suspend its dividend
or interest payments.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The SF Investment Manager will invest for the account of the Selected Fund in a diversified
portfolio of investments including, but not limited to, debt and equity securities of US or non-
US companies. The debt securities in which the SF Investment Manager invests, for the account of
the Selected Fund, may invest include, but are not limited to, corporate bonds, mortgage-backed
securities, taxable municipal securities, and US Government and agency debt securities. Preferred
securities are securities issued by corporate issuers that generally pay fixed or adjustable rate
distributions to investors and have preference over common shares in the payment of distributions
and the liquidation of a company’ s assets, but are junior to most other forms of a company’ s
debt, including both senior and subordinated debt.

The SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may invest without limit in
preferred securities and debt securities that are rated lower than investment grade at the time
of purchase or in unrated securities of comparable quality. These securities may also be referred
to as sub-investment grade securities and generally provide high income in an effort to
compensate investors for their higher risk of default, which is the failure to make required
interest or principal payments. Accordingly, the NAV of the Selected Fund may have a relatively
high level of volatility.

There is no limitation on the average maturity or average effective duration of the securities
held by the Selected Fund.

Normally, the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest
substantially all of the Selected Fund’ s assets to meet its investment objective. To the extent
that the Selected Fund’ s assets are not fully invested in accordance with its investment
objective, the SF Investment Manager’ s investment decisions may be made on the basis of short-
term market considerations in which case the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the
Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities. For temporary defensive
purposes, including during periods of high cash inflows and outflows, the SF Investment Manager
may temporarily deviate from the investment policies and restrictions of the Selected Fund.
During such periods, the Selected Fund may not achieve its investment objective.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

During the year, a viral Covid-19 pandemic continued to spread across the globe. It is causing
very significant financial market, economic and social dislocation globally, including very
significant disruption to business and economic activity. The economic disruption may
significantly reduce the value of many financial instruments including those held by the Series
Trust. The ultimate extent of the effect of this on the Series Trust is not possible to estimate
at this time and will only be finally determined on realisation of investments.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“ IFRS” ) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (* 1ASB” ), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the
1ASB.

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (* USD” ) and not the local
currency of the Cayman Islands. The units of the Series Trust are issued and redeemed in Japanese
Yen (* JPY” ) but the Series Trust’ s operations are primarily conducted in USD.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and IAS 27)
(2012) (the “ amendments” ). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of
an investment entity.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee in the application of IFRS that have a
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in Notes 9 and 10.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Measurement basis

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Fair value
loss (* FVTPL" )
Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

4. CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 November 2020 and
earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or
amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

Of those standards that are not yet effective, none is expected to have a material impact on the
Series Trust’ s financial statements in the period of initial application.

6. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year
beginning 1 November 2020

A number of amendments to IFRS are effective for the current financial year, but they do not have
a material effect on the Series Trust’ s financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust and consistently applied to all
periods presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the
trade date, which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the date on which they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:
e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (* SPPI” ).

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Business model assessment

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:

e the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust' s
management ;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

e how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust' s
continuing recognition of the assets.

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

e Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, subscriptions receivable and other
assets. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows.

e Other business model: this includes investment in Selected Fund. These financial assets
are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales
taking place.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, “ principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial

Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of

asset on initial recognition.
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— leverage features;

— prepayment and extension features;

— terms that limit the Series Trust' s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

For a reconciliation of line items in the Statement of Financial Position to the categories of
financial instruments, as defined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series
Trust were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in
profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

The fair value of the investment in the Selected Fund is based on the unaudited NAV per unit
obtained from the Selected Fund’ s administrators, which has been assessed as the most
representative measure of fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and
unrealised gains or losses on the investment in the Selected Fund are included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash, subscriptions receivable and other assets are included in this category.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses (continued)

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

As at the years ended 31 October 2021 and 2020, there were no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include payable for purchase of investment in Selected
Fund, repurchases payable and other payables.

(iii) Fair value measurement

“ Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access
at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid-
price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

IT there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would
take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The “ amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

(v) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (* ECLs” ) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

e Tinancial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
e other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series Trust' s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full,
without recourse by the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or

e the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of
the counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “ investment grade”

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to
credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Series Trust in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects to
receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “ credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Series Trust has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets
with retention of all or substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase
transactions.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vi) Derecognition (continued)

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting
agreements and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of
Financial Position. As at 31 October 2021 and 2020, the Series Trust does not hold any financial
assets or liabilities subject to master netting arrangements.

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) as its custodian (the “ Custodian” ). The Custodian has, in turn, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (* BBH” ) as their sub-custodian (the “ Sub-Custodian” ). Cash is
ultimately held at BBH as the Series Trust’ s banker. Cash comprises of cash held with maturities
of 3 months or less with BBH.

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL
Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-
dividend date basis.

The realised gain from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the
transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and the consideration
received on disposal. The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount
of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period.
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(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange transactions

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities, issue and
redemption of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions. Reported
net realised foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates
from other transactions denominated in foreign currencies are included in the net foreign
exchange loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Master Trust. The Master Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that it will be exempt from such
taxes for a period of fifty years from 2 December 2013 should they be enacted. As a result, no
provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust may be subject to
foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

Foreign currencies

Items which are included in the Series Trust’ s financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “ functional currency” ),
which is USD. Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of investments, issue
and repurchase of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the
exchange rates ruling at the year end date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies which are stated at fair value, are translated into USD, at the date the fair
value was determined. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from translation, if any,
are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemable Participating Units

The Redeemable Participating Units sold by the Series Trust are puttable instruments and are
classified as financial liabilities as they do not meet the conditions for equity classification
under the amendments to IAS 32, as there were different classes of Units with different features
in issue throughout the year (Note 12). The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the total Net
Assets of the Series Trust attributable to each Unit class by the number of Units in issue in
each respective class. All Units are issued and redeemed at this price.

Interest in another entity

Interest in another entity is defined for the purpose of IFRS 12 as contractual or non-
contractual involvement that exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance of
the other entity. It can be evidenced by holding of equity or debt instruments, but also
liquidity support, credit enhancement and guarantees.

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment fund in which it invests,
but that it does not consolidate, meets the definition of a structured entity because:

the voting rights in the Selected Fund are not dominant rights in deciding who controls
them because the rights relate to administrative tasks only;

the Selected Fund’ s activities are restricted by its offering documents and applicable
appendix; and

the Selected Fund has narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment
opportunities to investors.
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(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest in another entity (continued)

The table below describes the type of structured entity that the Series Trust does not
consolidate but in which it holds an interest:

Type of Nature and purpose Interest held by the

structured entity Series Trust

Investment Fund To provide a high level of income and Investments in units
attractive risk-adjusted return by investing issued by the Selected
in corporate securities across the capital Fund

structure based on the Manager’ s assessment
of relative value and risk.

The table below sets out interests held by the Series Trust in unconsolidated structured
entities. The Maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amounts of the financial assets held at 31
October 2021 and 2020.

Total net Carrying Total net Carrying
assets amount at assets amount at
(unaudited) FVTPL (unaudited) FVTPL
2021 2021 2020 2020
usD usD usD usD
Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund 2,520,145,516 714,378,751 1,686,150,823 433,803,630

During the years ended 31 October 2021 and 2020, the Series Trust did not provide additional
financial support to unconsolidated structured entities and has no current obligation to or
intention of providing other financial or other support.
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8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial
assets at Financial
Mandatorily amortised liabilities at
2021 at FVTPL cost amortised cost Total
usb usb Usb usb
Cash - 15,161,294 - 15,161,294
Financial assets at
FVTPL 714,378,751 - - 714,378,751
Subscriptions
receivable - 11,417,580 - 11,417,580
714,378,751 26,578,874 - 740,957,625
Repurchases payable - - 2,641,424 2,641,424
Other payables - - 850,397 850,397
Net assets attributable
to the holder of
redeemable participating
units - - 737,465,804 737,465,804

- - 740,957,625 740,957,625
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8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial
assets at Financial
Mandatorily amortised liabilities at
2020 at FVTPL cost amortised cost Total
usb usb Usb usb
Cash - 10,750,586 - 10,750,586
Financial assets at
FVTPL 433,803,630 - - 433,803,630
Subscriptions
receivable - 13,246,701 - 13,246,701
Other assets - 54,806 - 54,806
433,803,630 24,052,093 - 457,855,723
Payable for purchase of
investment in Selected
Fund - - 6,100,000 6,100,000
Repurchases payable - - 1,547,095 1,547,095
Other payables - - 575,175 575,175

Net assets attributable

to the holder of

redeemable

449,633,453

participating units - - 449,633,453

457,855,723 457,855,723
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose

fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
quoted prices in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’ s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are
required to reflect differences between the instruments. The Series Trust did not hold any
instruments in this category.

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uUsD uUsD uUsb usD
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in Selected
Fund - 714,378,751 - 714,378,751
- 714,378,751 - 714,378,751
2020
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in Selected
Fund - 433,803,630 - 433,803,630
- 433,803,630 - 433,803,630

There were no transfers across the three levels during the years ended 31 October 2021 and 2020.
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, subscriptions receivable, other assets, repurchases payable and other payables. These are
short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair
value, because of their short-term nature.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main risks arising from the Series Trust’ s financial instruments can be summarised as
follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It
represents the potential loss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in
the face of price movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk.

In order to pursue the Series Trust’ s investment objective, the Manager has committed to
employing a rigorous research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued
companies with positive risk/reward characteristics.

The Series Trust will invest, together with other investors, all, or substantially all of its
assets through a “ master-feeder” structure in the Selected Fund. A “ master-feeder” structure,
in particular the existence of multiple investment vehicles investing in the same portfolio,
presents certain unique risks to investors. Smaller investment vehicles investing in the Selected
Fund may be materially affected by the actions of larger investment vehicles investing in the
Selected Fund. For example, if a larger investment vehicle withdraws from the Selected Fund, the
remaining funds may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower
returns. Substantial withdrawals of capital by investors in the Selected Fund, including the
Series Trust and any other investors, over a short time period could necessitate the liquidation
of investment positions at a time and in a manner which does not provide the most economic
advantage to the Selected Fund and which therefore could adversely affect the NAV of the Selected
Fund and hence the NAV of the Series Trust.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust in the
Selected Fund. The Series Trust will be required to comply with the terms of the Selected Fund s
offering memoranda and constitutive documents, which may place limits on subscriptions and
repurchases, and additionally the liquidation of the Selected Fund would lead to the compulsory
repurchase of any shares held for the account of the Series Trust which may, in some cases, lead
to compulsory repurchases of Units. Accordingly, the performance of the Series Trust may not
absolutely reflect the performance of the Selected Fund.

The price of the units of the Selected Fund may fall as well as rise. There can be no assurance
that the Selected Fund will achieve its investment objective or that an investor will recover the
full amount invested in the Selected Fund. Restrictions on investments in certain jurisdictions
may limit the liquidity of the Selected Fund’ s investments. The capital return and income of the
Selected Fund is based on the capital appreciation and income on the investments it holds, less
expenses incurred. Therefore, the Selected Fund’ s return may be expected to fluctuate in
response to changes in such capital appreciation or income. An investment in the Selected Fund
should be viewed by an investor as a medium to long term investment.

The Selected Fund is subject to market risk. Market risk is the risk that a particular share, a
fund, an industry, or securities in general may fall in value. The value of investments in the
Selected Fund will go up and down with the prices of securities in which the Selected Fund
invest. The prices of securities change in response to many factors, including the historical and
prospective earnings of the issuer, the value of its assets, management decisions, demand for an
issuer’ s products or services, production costs, general economic conditions, interest rates,
currency exchange rates, investor perceptions, geopolitical factors and market liquidity.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that value of the related instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, or its issuer. The Series Trust
is susceptible to price risk that occurs at the Selected Fund, which may include substantial
risks as a result of trading by the Selected Fund of equity securities, derivative instruments,
options and futures, including securities denominated in different currencies while executing
their investment strategy. As the Selected Fund’ s investments in securities, futures contracts
and swap are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the Net Assets
attributable to the Series Trust.

As at 31 October 2021, if the price of the Investment in Selected Fund had increased by 5% with
all other variables held constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of
Usb35,718,938 (2020: USD21,690,182). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant,
would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown above.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that as certain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in
securities and other investments denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets may
be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in currency rates. Although the Series
Trust’ s investments are USD denominated, the Series Trust indirectly bears currency risk on the
investment held in the Selected Fund. The Investment Manager will monitor the portfolio of the
Selected Fund.

The class of units held by the Series Trust in the Selected Fund is USD denominated. This
presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor’ s financial activities are

denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (including JPY) (the “ Investor’ s
Currency” ) other than USD. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of USD or revaluation of the Investor’ s Currency) and the
risk that authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the Investor’ s Currency, as the case may be,
may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the Investor’ s Currency
against USD would decrease (a) the Investor’ s Currency equivalent value of the NAV of the
Selected Fund and NAV of the Selected Fund per unit and (b) the Investor’ s Currency equivalent

value of the distributions payable (if any).
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)

Some of the assets of the Selected Fund may be invested in other currencies and any income
received by the Selected Fund from these investments will be received in those currencies, some
of which may fall in value against the functional currency of the Selected Fund. In addition, the

Selected Fund may invest directly in currency deposits or forward contracts or equivalent
derivatives, in some cases for hedging purposes.

All the financial assets of the Series Trust, are denominated in USD with the effect that the
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be significantly
affected by currency movements and, as a result, a sensitivity analysis has not been performed.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to

adverse movements in relevant interest rates. The majority of the Series Trust’ s other financial
assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing. As a result, the Series Trust is
subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. However, the Series Trust is exposed to higher levels
of interest rate risk through its investment in the Selected Fund.

Interest rate risk at the Selected Fund level is the risk that the value of the Selected Fund’ s
portfolio may decline during periods of rising interest rates. When interest rates change, the
values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the values
of shorter-duration debt securities. The Selected Fund may be subject to a greater risk of rising
interest rates than would have been the case in past periods due to the recent environment of
near historically low rates, including negative interest rates, and the effect of potential
government fiscal policy initiatives and resulting market reaction to those initiatives. Due to
the Selected Fund’ s investment strategy, assets held by the Selected Fund would see fluctuation
based on changes to the market interest rates.
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(continued)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)

The table below and overleaf summarises the Series Trust’ s exposure to interest rate risks. It

includes the Series Trust’ s assets at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-

pricing or maturity dates.

Less

than 1 Variable Fixed Non-interest
2021 month interest* interest bearing Total
Assets Usb usb UsD usb UsD
Cash - - 15,161,294 15,161,294
Financial assets 714,378,751 714,378,751
at FVTPL - -
Subscriptions 11,417,580 11,417,580
receivable - -
Total assets - - 740,957,625 740,957,625
Liabilities
Repurchases
payable - - 2,641,424 2,641,424
Other payables - - 850,397 850,397
Total liabilities
excluding Net
Assets
attributable to
Holders of
Redeemable
Participating
Units - - 3,491,821 3,491,821
Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap - - N/A N/A

*Items classified as variable reprice annually or semi-annually at various dates during the year.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Less
Variable Fixed Non-interest
2020 interest* interest bearing Total
Assets UsD usD UsD usD
Cash - - 10,750,586 10,750,586

Financial assets
at FVTPL
Subscriptions
receivable

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Payable for
purchase of
investment in
Selected Fund
Repurchases
payable

Other payables

Total liabilities
excluding Net
Assets
attributable to
Holders of
Redeemable
Participating
Units

Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap

433,803,630

13,246,701

54,806

433,803,630

13,246,701

54,806

457,855,723

457,855,723

6,100,000

1,547,095

575,175

6,100,000

1,547,095

575,175

8,222,270

8,222,270

N/A

N/A
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash
repurchases of Redeemable Participating Units, which can be redeemed at the holder’ s option
based on the Series Trust’ s NAV per Redeemable Participating Unit at the time of the repurchase.
There are no repurchase restrictions on units of the Series Trust, other than in the limited
circumstances specified in the documentation. The Manager may borrow monies, for the account of
the Series Trust, provided that it will not result in an aggregate outstanding amount of
borrowing in excess of 10% of the NAV.

Redeemable Participating Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders of
the Series Trust as at each business day and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from
time to time determine (the “ Repurchase Day” ).

Per the policies of the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is able to redeem their investment in the
Selected Fund on any Repurchase Day (as defined above). As the repurchase policies of both the
Series Trust and Selected Fund are aligned, there is minimal impact on the Series Trust s
liquidity risk. The Selected Fund’ s securities are considered by the SF Investment Manager to be
readily liquid. The Selected Fund’ s liquidity risk is managed on a daily basis by the SF
Investment Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in place.

148/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)
The table below analyses the Series Trust’ s financial assets and liabilities by contractual

maturity as at 31 October 2021 and 2020:

Over 3
months or no

Less than fixed

1 month 1-3 months maturity Total
2021 UsD UsD usD UsD
Assets
Cash 15,161,294 - - 15,161,294
Subscriptions receivable 11,417,580 - - 11,417,580
Total Financial Assets 26,578,874 - - 26,578,874
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 2,641,424 - - 2,641,424

Other payables 850,397 - - 850,397

Net assets attributable
to the holder of
redeemable participating
units

Total Financial
Liabilities

737,465,804

737,465,804

740,957,625

740,957,625
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)

Over 3
months or no
Less than fixed
1 month 1-3 months maturity Total
2020 usb usb usb usb
Assets
Cash 10,750,586 - - 10,750,586
Subscriptions receivable 13,246,701 - - 13,246,701
Total Financial Assets 23,991,281 - - 23,997,287
Liabilities
Payable for purchase of
investment in Selected 6,100,000 6,100,000
Fund - -
Repurchases payable 1,547,095 - - 1,547,095
Other payables 575,175 - - 575,175

Net assets attributable
to the holder of
redeemable participating
units

Total Financial
Liabilities

449,633,453

449,633,453

457,855,723

457,855,723
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The Series Trust is
exposed to the credit risk of the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust may be exposed to the credit risk of the counterparties with which it trades in
relation to non-exchange-traded derivative instruments as these will not be afforded the same
protections as may apply to participants trading such instruments on organised exchanges, such as
the performance guarantee of an exchange clearing house. The counterparty in a non-exchange-
traded derivative transaction will be the specific company or firm involved in the transaction
rather than a recognised exchange, and accordingly the insolvency, bankruptcy or default of a
counterparty with which the Trustee, the Manager and the Investment Manager trade such
instruments in respect of the Series Trust, could result in substantial losses to the Series
Trust. The Trustee, the Manager and the Investment Manager, in respect of the Series Trust, may
have contractual remedies upon any default pursuant to agreements relating to particular
derivatives transactions. Such remedies could be inadequate, however, to the extent that the
collateral or other assets available are insufficient.

Both the cash and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at
the Sub-Custodian as banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust are held by the Sub-Custodian at
year end. The Sub-Custodian has a Fitch credit rating of A+. The Custodian (which is responsible
for both the Series Trust and Selected Fund) has an Egan-Jones credit rating of BBB+. Bankruptcy
or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust’ s rights with respect to its
investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

The Portfolio Managers of the SF Investment Manager continuously monitor the credit
worthiness/risk of the Selected Fund’ s investments.

The assets held for the account of the Selected Fund are subject to risks resulting from changes
in the creditworthiness of the underlying investments of the Selected Fund or the issuer of such
investments. This could lead to greater volatility in the prices of the security and in units of
the Selected Fund. For example, an issuer of a bond might not be able to meet its obligation to
make interest and principal payments, or bond investors as a whole may downgrade their view of
the issuer resulting in a deterioration of the price of the issuer’ s debt. In addition, credit
opinions from credit rating agencies may weigh on the credit spreads of the investments made for
the account of the Selected Fund.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Credit Risk (continued)
Amounts arising from ECL
Impairment on cash, interest, dividends and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust
considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the

counterparties.
11. CASH
2021 2020
usD usD
Cash 15,161,294 10,750,586
15,161,294 10,750,586

12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS

The Series Trust has two classes of units: Capital Growth Type Units and Monthly Distribution

Type Units.
2021 2020

Capital Growth Type Units

Number of units outstanding as at start of year 2,531,411 1,396,490
Number of units sold 2,624,512 1,421,815
Number of units redeemed (1,097,322) (286,894)
Number of units outstanding as at end of year 4,058,601 2,531,411
Monthly Distribution Type Units

Number of units outstanding as at start of year 1,758,664 950,705
Number of units sold 1,347,788 997,582
Number of units redeemed (542,233) (189,623)

Number of units outstanding as at end of year 2,564,219 1,758,664

152/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS (continued)

From and including the initial closing day, units of each class of units will be available for
subscription by investors at a price equal to the NAV per Unit of the applicable class of units
on each dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The NAV per Unit for each class of
Units will be calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing day is not also a
valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription amount is 1 unit
and thereafter subscriptions may be made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate subscription amounts
will be rounded naturally to the nearest two decimal places with 0.005 being rounded up. There
will be no subscription fee payable.

Investors may subscribe for units of a class of units during the initial offer period by sending

a completed application form to the Administrator by no later than 5.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the

last day of the initial offer period or by such other times and/or days as the Manager may in its
sole discretion determine.

The subscription monies must be remitted in full by telegraphic transfer from an account in the
name of the applicant for the account of the Series Trust for a cash settlement date on or before
the date falling one business day after the initial closing day. Payment must be made in USD. No
third party payments will be accepted. Incomplete application forms may, in the discretion of the
Manager, be held over to the first dealing day following receipt of a completed application form
and units will then be issued at the relevant NAV per Unit on such dealing day.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each dealing day which is also a
day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager
may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust in respect of Units of a class of
Units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the Administrator. The repurchase
notice once served is irrevocable, unless the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
determines otherwise. The repurchase price per unit of a class of units will be calculated as the
NAV per unit of such class of units as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day
is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding valuation day). The Manager may, in
its sole discretion, hold over any repurchase notice received after the repurchase notice
deadline until the next following Repurchase Day and repurchase the relevant units at the
relevant repurchase price applicable to such class of units on that Repurchase Day.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Series Trust’ s fees payable as at 31 October 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

usD usD
Distribution fees 432,736 257,677
Investment Manager fees 123,705 73,630
Fee Agent fees 74,223 44,178
Administration fees 41,365 25,771
Custody fees 17,111 4,750
Audit fees 25,116 25,109
Other fees and expenses 136,141 144,060

850,397 575,175

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in
arrears at the rate of 0.2% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears
at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent is responsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will also
cover all costs and expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager fees including sundry
expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of
the Fee Agent Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent Fees for

all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Administration Fees

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a monthly fee of 0.07% per
annum of the NAV on the first USD500 million, 0.06% per annum of the NAV on the next USD500
million and 0.05% per annum of the NAV after USD1,000 million.

All of the Administrator’ s fees are subject to additions in relation to value added tax (if
any). In addition, the Trustee pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the Administrator s
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for photocopying, fax, telephone, printing, courier, postage
and other communications charges, as well as for any banking costs and the fees or charges of any
government or official department, body or organisation, and any other similar expenses, costs,
fees or charges paid by the Administrator on behalf of the Series Trust in connection with the
performance of its services for the Series Trust.

Custody Fees
The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable monthly in arrears at
the rate of 0.025% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed between
the relevant parties and is reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all out-of-
pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives out of the Series Trust, a fee on a monthly basis at the rate of 0.7%
per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

Fees of the Selected Fund

As the Series Trust intends to invest substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, the
Series Trust will indirectly bear the costs and fees applicable to the Selected Fund. These fees
will reduce the NAV attributable to holders of redeemable participating units of the Selected
Fund, which will affect the value of the Investment in Selected Fund presented in the Statement
of Financial Position of the Series Trust. The total fees of the Selected Fund are approximately
0.55% of the assets under management of the Selected Fund per annum subject to change of certain
Tfixed fees. More details regarding the breakdown of specific fees paid within the Selected Fund
are available in the Offering Documents of the Series Trust.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

14. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS

2021 2020

usD usD
Net gain/(loss) on investments consists of the following
Movement in unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets at

28,737,628 (4,533,780)

FVTPL
Net realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL - 122,565
Net gain/(loss) on investments 28,737,628 (4,411,215)

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The
Trustee, Manager, Investment Manager, Fee Agent, Administrator, Custodian and Distributor are
deemed to be related parties of the Series Trust. The Trustee is a related party by virtue of its
power to create the Trust under the Deed of Establishment. The Manager is a related party by
virtue of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment and by virtue of common
ownership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Investment Manager is a
related parties by virtue of their power to make investment decisions. The Fee Agent is a related
party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it provides calculation
agency services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in Note 13. The
Distributor, Administrator and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their affiliation with
the Investment Manager. There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the
normal course of business. Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and discussed in Note 13. Amounts charged by and payable to
related parties as at 31 October 2021 and 2020 are disclosed in Note 13.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

16. DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current distribution
policy of the Series Trust is:

(i in respect of the Capital Growth Type Units, to pay no distribution; and

(i1 in respect of the Monthly Distribution Type Units, pay to holders of such class of Units a
monthly distribution (a “ Monthly Distribution” ) in respect of each distribution date
paid out of the investment principal (a realisation of units in the Selected Fund) which
may also be in excess of any capital gain and attributable to the Monthly Distribution
Type Units in respect of the corresponding distribution period.

The amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each distribution date shall be determined by
the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account (1) realised and unrealised capital gains
from the Selected Fund, and (2) miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per Unit each month.

Furthermore, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in circumstances
where it deems appropriate, elect that a Monthly Distribution is not payable in respect of
Monthly Distribution Type Units for a relevant month, notwithstanding its option to use the
investment principal attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units. Circumstances where the
Manager may make such an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in its sole
discretion that application of the Series Trust’ s investment objectives and policies have
generated a negative performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent
that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such an election.

Any Monthly Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such
distribution) on the corresponding distribution date. Distributions will be made to the person in
whose name Monthly Distribution Type Units are registered on the register of Unitholders on the
relevant distribution record day. Such distributions will be rounded naturally to two decimal
places with 0.005 being rounded up.

Distributions paid during the year ended 31 October 2021 amounted to USD6,916,185 (2020:
usb4,147,884).
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2021
(continued)

17. POST STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EVENTS
Subsequent to 31 October 2021, there were redemptions of USD44,461,277 from the Series Trust and
there were subscriptions of USD54,612,144 into the Series Trust. Also through to 3 March 2022,

the Series Trust paid Distributions of USD2,571,074.

As at the date the financial statements were available to be issued, uncertainty still remains
around the length of the disruption of Covid-19 and the impact on global markets.

As of 3 March 2022, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require
disclosure in the financial statements.
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

11 8,273,695 956,020 7,465,032 862,584

12 26,831 3,100
9,10 1,858,958,627 214,802,669 1,054,817,585 121,884,172
19,569,664 2,261,275 25,685,530 2,967,963
13 19,354,115 2,236,368 12,195,506 1,409,191
1,906,182,932 220,259,438 1,100,163,653 127,123,910
9,10 9,913 1,145 100,956 11,665
48,429 5,596 92,017 10,633
14,17 4,982,594 575,739 7,360,489 850,505
15,18 5,040,936 582,480 7,553,462 872,803
1,901,141,996 219,676,958 1,092,610,191 126,251,108

2021 29
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

7 17,849,978 2,062,565 7,778,193 898,770
7 82,859 9,574 181,855 21,013
7 54,032,463 6,243,451 22,472,084 2,596,649
(87,520) (10,113) (154,469) (17,849)
16 37,058,734 4,282,137 50,375,926 5,820,938
108,936,514 12,587,614 80,653,589 9,319,522
17,18 147,122 17,000 55,881 6,457
17,18 7,234,873 835,990 2,786,251 321,951
17,18 67,481 7,797 53,763 6,212
17,18 588,487 68,000 223,525 25,828
17,18 467,896 54,065 287,250 33,192
17,18 110,100 12,722 40,895 4,725
17,18 19,750 2,282 7,264 839
29,753 3,438 19,069 2,203
7 98 11 17 2
16,159 1,867 58,357 6,743
8,681,719 1,003,173 3,532,272 408,154
100,254,795 11,584,442 77,121,317 8,911,368
20 (71,698,594)  (8,284,773)  (25,887,902)  (2,991,347)

(71,698,594) (8,284,773)  (25,887,902) (2,991,347)

28,556,201 3,299,669 51,233,415 5,920,021
7 (5,671,337) (655,323)  (2.560,810) (295,902)
22,884,864 2,644,346 48,672,605 5,624,120
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126,251,108

93,260,048
(2,475,779)
(2,765)

2,644,346

2019

190,236,754

860,104,179
(6,402, 600)
747)

48,672,605

21,981,857

99,385,038

(739,820)

(86)
5,624,120

1,901,141,996

219,676,958 1,092,610,191

126,251,108
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2020 12 31

2020 2019
28,556,201 3,299,669 51,233,415 5,920,021
(5.,671,337) (655,323)  (2,560,810) (295,902)
71,698,594 8,284,773 25,887,902 2,991,347
(26,831) (3,100) - -
(804,141,042)  (92,918,497) (890,452,406) (102,891,776)
(7.158,609) (827,177)  (10,016,138)  (1,157,365)
(91,043) (10,520) (47,782) (5,521)
(2,377,895) (274,766) 1,681,378 194,283
(719,211,962)  (83,104,942) (824,274,441)  (95,244,912)
775,622,492 89,623,179 846,226,485 97,781,470
6,115,866 706,688 3,047,624 352,153
(21,426,038)  (2,475,779)  (6,402,600) (739,820)
(43,588) (5,037) 92,017 10,633
(23,931) (2,765) @747) (86)
(40,224,176)  (4,647,904)  (12,010,208)  (1,387,780)
720,020,625 83,198,383 830,952,571 96,016,570
808,663 93,441 6,678,130 771,658
7,465,032 862,584 786,902 90,927
8,273,695 956,025 7,465,032 862,584
13,410,190 1,549,547 4,560,206 526,932
52,795,753 6,100,549 14,538,120 1,679,880
82,859 9,574 181,855 21,013
(98) 11) an @
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2022

713,254,646 82,416,574,345
1,462,936 169,042,255
711,791,710 82,247,532,091

4,113,354

2,592,217
110.13 12,726
99.83 11,535
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2022 735,000 8,493
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2022

1,935,352,541

3,155,468

11 41,617,333

10,877,902,336

290,444,137

27 166,579,245,314
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2019 2019 12 31 2020
2020 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2022 28
115.55
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2020 12 31
2020 2019
uSsD USD

16,025 1,852 34,534 3,990
16,025 1,852 34,534 3,990
16,025 1,852 34,534 3,990
220,000 25,421 215,000 24,843
(21) (3]

236,025 27,273 249,513 28,831
(111,476) (12,881) (143,734) (16,608)
124,549 14,392 105,779 12,223
124,549 14,392 105,779 12,223
124,549 14,392 105,779 12,223
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

ush usD
9 1,643,796 189,941 1,436,186 165,951
10 220,970 25,533 217,427 25,124
1,864,766 215,474 1,653,613 191,075
10 217,933 25,182 131,329 15,175
217,933 25,182 131,329 15,175
11 735,000 84,929 735,000 84,929
911,833 105,362 787,284 90,971
1,646,833 190,292 1,522,284 175,900
1,864,766 215,474 1,653,613 191,075

2021 10

Brian Burkholder
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2020 12 31
usD usD usD
2020
735000 84920 787284 90971 1522284 175900
124549 14,392 124549 14,392
12 31 735000 84929 911,833 105362 1,646,833 190,202
2019

735,000 84,929 681,505 78,748 1,416,505 163,677
105,779 12,223 105,779 12,223
12 31 735,000 84,929 787,284 90,971 1,522,284 175,900
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2020 12 31
2020 2019
usD usD
124,549 14,392 105,779 12,223
4 (16,025) (1,852) (34,534) (3,990)
21 2
108,524 12,540 71,266 8,235
(3,543) (409) (10,575) (1,222)
(3543) (409) (10,575) (1,222)
86,604 10,007 127,594 14,743
86,604 10,007 127,594 14,743
4 16,025 1,852 34,534 3,990
207,610 23,989 222,819 25,747
207,610 23,989 222,819 25,747
1,436,186 165951 1,213,367 140,205
1,643,796 189,941 1,436,186 165,951
9 1,643,796 189,941 1,436,186 165,951
1,643,796 189941 1,436,186 165,951
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KY
1104 309
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY 1-1104, Cayman Islands

IFRS
IFRS IAS
IASB

IFRS

uSD
usb
usb
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ECL
ECL

175/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

IAS IAS

IASB IFRS

15

2020 2019

16,025 34,534
16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019

(34,668)

(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105,756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039

10 10
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HOLT
PIMCO

J REIT
AHL
SBlI PICTET

J REIT
us

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186
2020 2019
220,970 217,427

220,970 217,427
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2020 2019
217,933 131,329
217,933 131,329
2020 2019

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019 12 31

HKD

HKD USD USD HKD

2020 2019 12
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13

14

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573

2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756

2020

12 31
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16

17

2021

10
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Crach Suisse Management (Cayman) Limilad
Financial siatemands far the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

usD H:ﬂfﬂ;;féa 2020 2019

et iome. e e e HEGERY DA
- af which Interest income from instruments af amortised cosf 16,005 34,534
Met interest income 4 16,025 34,534

Cther loss - (1)
Met revenues 236,025 249,513

General, adminisirative and other operating expenses B (111,476) (143,734)
ﬂpamting profit before allowance and taxation 124,549 105,779

Profit before tax 124,549 105,779

Income taxexpense 7 - B
Profit after tax 124,549 105,779

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Crochl Suisse Managemand (Cayman) Limilad
hodes fo Finangial stilamants for the yoar snded 31 Decambsr 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

USD R‘fﬂ’*ﬂf 2020 20149
B e e e
Cashand duefrombanks S 1043,796 1,436,186
Other assets 10 20,970 217,497

Total assets 1,864,766 1,653,613

Liabilities

e ————————————— o LA AT
Total liabilities 217,933 131,329

Shareholders’ equily e
Share capital 11 735,000 735,000

Refainedeamings 911,833 787,984
Total shareholders’ equity 1,646,833 1,522,284

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,864,766 1,653,613

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 June 2021

Director

B et B el Bt

Brian Burkholder

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Creai! Suesa Managamand (Capman) Limited
Males fo Finencial stafements for tha pear andosd 31 December 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share  Retained

usD capital earnings Tatal

SR e e s

Balance at 1 Janvary 735000 787,284 1,522,284
Profit for the year - 124,549 124,549
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 911,833 1,646,833
2019

Balanceatilanuary 735000 681,505 1416505
Profit for the year — 105779 105,779
Balance at 31 December 735,000 787,284 1,522,284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cregh Swisse Management (Cayman) Limilsd
NMadas bo Financiyl slalamenis far the vear snded 31 Decembar 2000

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

USD n;rgw 2020 20189
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 124 549 106,779

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

generated from operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profit before

tax and other adjustments:

Interest Income 4 (16,0258) (34,534)
B [ P R R A S s A
Cash generated from operating activities

before changes in operating assets and

liabilities 108,524 71,266

MNet (increase) in operating assets: :

Other assets © (3543) (10575)
Met (increase) in uperating assets {3,543) (10,575)
Net increase in operating liabilites:
Other liabilities 86,604 127 594

Netincrease in operating liabilittes 86804 127,594
Interest income received 4 16,025 34,534

Met cash generated from operating activity 207,610 222,819

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 207,610 222,819

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,436,186 1,213,367

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

Cash and due from banks 9 1,643,796 1,436,186

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

The accomparying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Credit Suisse Managamen! (Cayman) Limidod
Males fo Financial stalemenis for the year andad 31 Decamber 2020

MNotes to the financial statements
Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (ihe "Company®) is incorporated in the Cayman lslands
with limited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creafion of trusts and the administration
and management of assets in trusts, The Company's registered office s ¢/o Maples Corparate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY 1-1104, Cayman lslands.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statemenis hawe been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporling Standards ("IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accourfing Standards (*lASs™) and
Interpretations issued by Intemafional Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is set out below,

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of pelicies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
histarical experience and wvarious other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumnsiances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about canying values of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates,

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the pericd of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Fareign currency

The Company's functional and presertation currency is United States Dollars ("USD"). Foreign
currency transactions during the year are translated info USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into LSO at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting pericd. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Mor-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, Mon-
monetary assets and liabilties denominated in foreign curencies that are stated ai fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss,
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Cred Suisse Managament (Cayman) Limited
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Significant Accounting Palicies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Other assets

Other asseis are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter slated at amorised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") (refer to Note 2(g)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to refated parfies without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful
debts.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or consiructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a refiable estimate cash be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be esfimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disdosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of econamic benefits is remaote.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any cbjective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting period. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apphy primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost, The impairment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasts of fulure econamic conditions available at the
reporting date, This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabiltty-weighted basis,

Revenue recognition

Fravided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, service fee income is recognised in profit or loss when
the investment management service is provided.

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an acenal basis,
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MNotes o Financial stalemenis far the year ended 31 Decembar 2020

Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a parly is considered to be related to the Company if:
(a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that person:
{i) has conirol or joint control aver the Compary;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company’s parent.

(B)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means thai each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both enfities are joint veriures of the same third party.

{iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entity is an asscciate of the
third party.,

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company.

() The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(v} A person identified in (2)) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the enfity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expecled io
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The: Compary has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their anmeal
reporting pericd commencing 1 January 2020:
* Definition of Material — amendments to 145 1 and 1AS 8
* Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Repaorting
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recogrised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effeciive for the cumrent

accounting peried of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Company’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in Note 2(k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (Mote 15),
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Net Interest Income
usoD 2020 2019
Met interest income
Interest income on cash and due from banks 16,095 34,534
Total interest income 16,025 34,534

All the above interest income on instruments are at amortised cost.

Service Fee Income

The principal activilies of the Company are the creation of frusts and the administration and

management of assets in trusts.

Revenue represents invesiment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

uso 2020 2019

Revenues

Total revenues 220,000 215,000
General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses
ushD 2020 2019
General administrative and other operating expenses
Other expenses : = (34,668)
AR e T A U.'IBQ}HQH
Budiorremunenaion o B0 (8 119)
Direciors' remuneration (107,003)  (105,756)
Total general administrative and other aperating expenses {111,476) {143,734)

All of the above expenditures are payable to the Company's immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company setles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman lslands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Govemnor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital faxes until 10 October 2039, Accordingly, no pravision for income taxes is included

in thase financial statements,

10
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Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsolidated struclured endities

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Compary was involved in the
design or set up of the structured entity and has a form of involvement with the structured entity.

The below unconsclidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fived annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2018: USD 5,000} is received but no interest is held by the
Company as at 31 December 2020:

Ghbal REIT Income Alpha Fund {For Cha.!lﬁed IHEhtI.JIIOI'iEI.I Imestcrs Cl'nl_)f}

Austrafian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Gualified Insfitutional Investors Only)

US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

‘Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
_F"rlnu:lpal / C.S Canadigm EEF.II'[}I' Income: Fund {Fur Oualrhef_l Ins1rtulmnal In_'.rqs@ors Dn_ly]_l R
Global REI'I' Tﬂpie Premium Funq {For Qualified Imiltuhpml |I'I"-I'E’StOI'S Drﬂy]

us I-_Ingh Div Equrh_.r F‘remu.m Fund {For Ouallflad Institutional Investors Clrliy}

US Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
‘Daiwa Em&rglng Local Market Bund Fund {Fﬂr Qualified institutional Inmstorg_{]nl}r}
US Preferred REIT Income Fund {For Qualified h'lGll'tUllGﬂaI I!m-'estws Gﬂh']

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Quaiified institutional investors Only)
NB/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional investors Onk)
Dama LIK ngh Drmdend Equrt';f Fund {Fur Qualified Ins’tl{'f{t_lt_]ﬂail_ _IT'estufs Gnlg,r] L
"AMP Australia Inmme Bond Fund I[For Dualrﬁad Inshtuhor:al Investors {}nlj,-'}
‘Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Ivestors Only)
Daiwa Brazilran Real Emd Fund I[chr Dualtfled ’Instllutknnal 1nvestnrs -Dnlyjl
Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional investors Only)
AMP Australia REIT Fund (Fnr Clualmed Institutional Investors Only)

:-.J FEEIT a.nd Real Estate Equrty Funﬂl I{F{:r Duallflad lnstllutmnal Imreshrs Onl:,'} o

gaalv-ia American High Dividend Equity Quattro Incame Fund (For Qualified Insfitutional Investors
o

‘Daiwa American REIT Quatiro Income Fund (For Gualified institutional Investors Gnly)
Shinsei World Wrap Sl:ahle Type {Fur Qualified Institutional Ir'n.vest;:ur-s -Clnlgj
Shlnael Wndd Wrap Grc::wth 1 Type (¢ {Fur Clualified Institutional Im'esturs Only)
USREIT Tnple Eng_ln_e_P’Ius Fund L'Fm Clua!lﬁad Instliuhnna.l Imrestors Only)
Japaneae Gaovernment Bond 1'? 2[] Y&ar Lax:lder Fund (Fm Duahfled IrEIltuhunaI In'-rsstnrs Clmly}
Australia REITFund

_Australla REIT F‘Ius ey e LT
UST Treasur],.r 57 "r"?.a_r _I_addm Fund {Fnr le‘iﬁ:ed Ins1ntu!ma[ Imestors Gnly]
_US Munlqpaj Bond Fund
_Tulm Marine CAT Euncl Fund
Global ngh Dmdeu‘d Equrtj.r F'TEI‘I!‘IILIm Fund (Ful t].lalrﬁﬂd Inslltut:nnal ]nueﬂms Only}
Meister's Cnﬂec‘tmn

HOLTE Eum Eqult:,r Premium Fund I{Fnr Duallhed Instrl.utlnnal Ir'r-.-'estnrs Onb_,{]
"PIMCO Short Term income Strategy Fund

1
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Unconsclidated Structured Entities (continued)

PIMCCI Shart Term Strategy

Dawa BB REIT Eauered Call FUI"‘Id {Flnr ‘Qualified institutional Im'e.stms 'Dnlyj
Fu:lragn Denaminated Man AHL Smart Leuerage Str:aiegy Fund

5Bl Pictet Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
.ALID Shnr’t Term Bond Fund T
Asia Eqmty Income Plus btrategyr Fund I[F::Ir Qualified Inshtuhnnal 1nvestor:s Clnly}
J-REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onby)"

US Value Equrt'_.r C{mﬁE_:I'ItI‘-B.tEd Fund {Fa:ur [lua]rir&d Irbstltuhcnal Imestms Cﬂ'ﬂ_'f}

Saunsal [European Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Inveatﬂ_rs_()_nly}
DCPM'ISIdE Cun‘[rﬂl Equrt}r Fund I:Fm Guallfled 1nstllut|nnal Investms 'Dnl:,.r}l

* The funds were terminated during 2020,

The Company has not provided financial or other support to conselidated structured entities that it was
not contractually required to provide.

The Cempany does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other supped fo
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractually required to provide,

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents comprize:

Uusb 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,435,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,436,188

Other Assets and Other Liabilities

uspb 2020 2019
Other assets

Interest and fees receivable 220,970 17,427
Total other assets 220,970 217,427
uso 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Interest and fees payable 217,933 131,328
Total other liabilities 217,933 131,329

12
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Share Capital

Authorised and issued share capital

2020 2019
Mo. of uspD Mo. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
lssued and fully paid up:
Ordinany shares 35,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitied o one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ardinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
pulicies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regularly resviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, to
the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current periad.
Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business, These risks are managed by the Compary's financial management policies and
practices described below,

Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily altributable to amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management regulary monitors its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance,

13
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Netes fo Financial statermants for the year ended 31 December 2000

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Company's palicy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contractual and
reasonably foreseaable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 Decermber 2020 and 2019, all of the Company's financial llabilities, which includes all creditars
and accruals, are on demand ar undated and are expecied to be setiled within three months.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed 1o interest rate risk only to the exient that it earns bank interest on cash
and deposits. At 31 December 2020 and 2018, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on the camrying value of the recegnised assets or liabilities of the Company.

Foreign cumency risk

The Compary is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"),

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers that the risk of movements in exchange
rates between USD and HKD to be insignificant.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related party transactions.

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Parent Fellow Total Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
usD Companies Companies
Assals
Oher assals - o053 200,863 - 215,000 215,000
Total assets - 220,863 220,863 = 215,000 215,000
Liabilities and Equity
Otherlebitties  ....2W72 Lo BATR O /AE =L 2081
Shara capital 735,000 E 735,000 735,000 == 735,000
Tetal liakilittes and
shareholders' equity 844,732 - 848,732 760,573 - TE0,573
14
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Material Related Party Transactions {continued)

Related party revenues and expenses

2020 2019
Parant Fellow Tatal Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
USD Companies Companies
Revenues
SO TR MO e T, 0000, 0900000 e 215000 915,000
Tatal revenues - 220,000 220,000 - 215,000 215,000

Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management persennel (USD) 2020 2019
Shart-term employes benefits 107,083 106,756
Total Remuneration of key management personnel 107,003 105,756

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2020, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is Credil
Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerland, Credit Suisse Group AG produces financial
staternents available for public use,

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatary for
31 December 2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foresesable future fransactions.

Subsequent Events

There have been no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial period,
which significantly atfected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Company, the resulis of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in fulure financial years,

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 10
June 2021,
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Meister*s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Meister™s Collection (the "Series Trust'), a series-trust of Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) 111, which comprise the statement of financial position as at October 31, 2021, the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable participating units and cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust as at October 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (1ESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Wanagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s financial reporting process.
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Meister*s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

March 03, 2022
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Independent auditor’ s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (the “ Company”) set out on
pages 3 to 15, which comprise:

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

b. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

c. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

d. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e. the notes to the financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2020, and of itsfinancial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’ s report to the board of directors of

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAswill always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
mi sstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as agoing concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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